CITY OF LOCKHART-FIRE FIGHTERS' AND POLICE OFFICERS' CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

Civil Service Commission Meeting

April 15, 2024

6:30 P.M.

Commissioners present:

Chairman Worlanda Neal Commissioner Carl Cisneros **Staff present:**

Gary Williamson, Police Chief Randy Jenkins, Fire Chief Julie Bowermon, Civil Service Director

Commissioners absent:

Commissioner Ray Sanders

Chairman Neal called the meeting of the Civil Service Commission to order on this date at **6:30 p.m**.

Agenda

1. Discuss and elect a Commission Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson to serve from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024.

Commissioner Cisneros made a motion to elect Worland Neal as Chairperson and Ray Sanders as Vice-Chairperson to serve from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. Chairman Neal seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-0.

2. Discussion and/or action regarding approval Commission minutes of November 6, 2023.

Chairman Neal requested any corrections to the Civil Service Commission minutes of November 6, 2023. There were none.

<u>Chairman Neal made a motion to approve Civil Service Minutes of November 6.</u> 2024. Commissioner Cisneros seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-0.

3. Discussion and/or action to address the inadequate number of eligible candidates for the Police Lieutenant examination; consider available options under the Lockhart Police Department Alternate Promotional System, Local Rules, and Texas Local Government Code Chapter 143, Civil Service, to include suspending/waiving the requirement of three candidates for the upcoming Police Lieutenant exam (date to be determined), for this exam only, thereby acknowledging and authorizing that two candidates participating in the exam ensure a competitive examination.

Ms. Bowermon stated the Police Department recently had 2 lieutenant position vacancies. A promotional exam was held and open to all 3 current Lockhart police sergeants. One of the sergeants successfully passed the written exam and will move forward in the promotional process. A second promotional exam will need to be held to fill the remaining lieutenant position. The APS states Section .032 of the Local Rules remains in effect, unless otherwise addressed in the alternate system. The APS does not address the required number of candidates to hold an exam. Section .032 of the Local Rules includes a requirement that 3 candidates sit for a promotional exam and if there are not at

Page 1 of 3

least 3 candidates, the Commission shall follow the procedures relating to eligibility for promotional exams outlined in Texas Local Government Code Chapter 143.031(c). This procedure consists of opening the exam first to Sergeants with 2 years of experience within the Lockhart Police Department and then to Sergeants with less than 2 years, in other words all Sergeants. However, the department currently only has 2 remaining Sergeants. This procedure includes opening to additional lower ranks (Police Officers), if necessary, to reach a competitive pool. After careful consideration of the needs of the department as well as the full intent to comply with the Lockhart Police Department Alternate Promotional System, Local Rules, and Texas Local Government Code Chapter 143, Civil Service, both she and the Police Chief recommend that the Commission waive the rule of "3" and allow that only 2 employees must sit to take the Lieutenant exam – for this exam only.

There was further discussion.

Chairman Neal made a motion to approve suspending/waiving the requirement of three candidates for the upcoming Police Lieutenant exam (date to be determined), for this exam only, thereby acknowledging and authorizing that two candidates participating in the exam ensure a competitive examination. Commissioner Cisneros seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-0.

4. Discussion and/or action regarding suspending/waiving the Commission Local Rule requirement that three candidates be present for the current Fire Captain Exam (date to be determined), thereby providing that only two candidates are required to ensure a competitive examination because only two have been employed by LFD for four years. And, in the event that the 2 eligible Fire Engineers in the Lockhart Fire Department do not complete a "notice of intent to test" by the deadline established by the Director for the upcoming Fire Captain Exam (date to be determined), the Commission authorizes the Director to open the exam to all Fire Engineers in the department, regardless of tenure; waiving the 4 years of service in the department requirement; and providing that two candidates ensure a competitive examination for this examination only.

Ms. Bowermon stated a Captain vacancy exists and it is necessary to hold a Fire Captain promotional exam. Chapter 143.030(b) requires that the exam be first opened to Engineers with 2 years of experience. Chapter 143.028(a) requires that a firefighter must have served 4 years in the fire department to be eligible for a promotion to Captain. By opening the exam to Engineers with 2 years in that position and 4 years of service in the department, 2 employees would be eligible for the exam. Chapter 143.030(d) requires that if there is not an adequate number of Engineers with 2 years of experience, the Commission may open the exam down to Engineers with less than 2 years of experience (in other words, all Engineers). By opening the exam to all Engineers with 4 years of service in the department, still only 2 employees would be eligible. Because the rule of 3 is a Local Civil Service Rule, staff recommends that the Commission waive the rule of "3" and allow that only 2 employees must sit to take the Captain exam – for this exam only. Which still maintains that each employee must meet the Tx LGC,

Chapter 143 requirement of 4 years of service in the department. To prevent a delay in filling the Captain vacancy, staff also recommends that in the event both eligible Engineers do not turn in a "notice of intent to test" by the Director's established deadline, the exam then be opened to all Engineers. Initially the exam will be open to the 2 eligible Engineers. On the exam notice the Civil Service Director will include a deadline for the 2 eligible Engineers to submit a "notice of intent to test." If both do not submit the notice, the Director will then open the exam to ALL engineers and hold the exam with a minimum of 2 candidates.

There was further discussion.

Chairman Neal made a motion to approve suspending/waiving the Commission Local Rule requirement that three candidates be present for the current Fire Captain Exam (date to be determined), thereby providing that only two candidates are required to ensure a competitive examination because only two have been employed by LFD for four years. And, in the event that the 2 eligible Fire Engineers in the Lockhart Fire Department do not complete a "notice of intent to test" by the deadline established by the Director for the upcoming Fire Captain Exam (date to be determined), the Commission authorizes the Director to open the exam to all Fire Engineers in the department, regardless of tenure; waiving the 4 years of service in the department requirement; and providing that two candidates ensure a competitive examination for this examination only. Commissioner Cisneros seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-0.

5. Director's Report.

- Police Entrance Exam scheduled for April 19, 2024
- Fire Fighter Entrance Exam scheduled for May 4, 2024.

6. Adjournment.

<u>Chairman Neal made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Cisneros seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:07 pm.</u>

PASSED and APPROVED this 29th day of April, 2024.

Signed:

Worlanda Neal, Commissioner

Carl Cisneros

Ray Sanders, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Julie Bowermon, Civil Service Director